
Page 1 of 2 
 

 

 
 

AGENDA 
REGULAR MEETING 

 

City Council of the Town of Colma 
Colma Community Center 
1520 Hillside Boulevard 

Colma, CA 94014 
 

Wednesday, January 11, 2017 
CLOSED SESSION – 6:00 PM 

REGULAR SESSION – 7:00 PM 

CLOSED SESSION – 6:00 PM 

1. In Closed Session Pursuant to Government Code Section 54957.6 – Conference with 
Labor Negotiators 

 Agency Negotiators:  Sean Rabé, City Manager 
     Austris Rungis, IEDA 
 Employee Organizations:   Colma Peace Officers Association 
  Colma Communications/Records Association 
 Unrepresented Employees: All 
      Chief of Police  

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE AND ROLL CALL – 7:00 PM  

ADOPTION OF AGENDA  

PRESENTATION  

• Introduction of new Assistant Planner Jonathan Kwan 

• Holiday Decorating Contest Winners 

• Home for All Presentation by Jessica Mullin of San Mateo County 

PUBLIC COMMENTS 

Comments on the Consent Calendar and Non-Agenda Items will be heard at this time. 
Comments on Agenda Items will be heard when the item is called. 

CONSENT CALENDAR 

2. Motion to Accept the Minutes from the December 13, 2016 Special Meeting. 

3. Motion to Accept the Minutes from the December 14, 2016 Regular Meeting. 

4. Motion to Approve Report of Checks Paid for December 2016. 



Page 2 of 2 
 

5. Motion to Adopt an Ordinance Adding Colma Municipal Code Section 2.04.065 Regarding Dog 
Park Regulations (Second Reading). 

6. Motion to Accept Informational Report on Recreation Department Programs, Activities, Events, 
and Trips for the Fourth Quarter of 2016. 

NEW BUSINESS 

7. MEMORANDUM OF AGREEMENT WITH SMC FLOOD CONTROL DISTRICT 

Consider: Motion to Resolution Approving Memorandum of Agreement with the San Mateo County 
Flood Control District for Maintenance of the Colma Creek Flood Control Channel. 

8. ADULT HOLIDAY EVENT 2017 

Consider: Motion Directing City Manager to Plan and Coordinate an Adult Holiday Event at the 
South San Francisco Conference Center on December 9, 2017; to Set the Participation Fee for the 
Adult Holiday Party at $15 for Adults and $10 for Seniors and Disabled; and, to Plan and 
Coordinate the Annual Town Picnic for September 9, 2017. 

REPORTS 

Mayor/City Council       

City Manager          

ADJOURNMENT 
The City Council Meeting Agenda Packet and supporting documents are available for review at the Colma Town Hall, 1188 El 
Camino Real, Colma, CA during normal business hours (Mon – Fri 8am-5pm). Persons interested in obtaining an agenda via e-
mail should call Caitlin Corley at 650-997-8300 or email a request to ccorley@colma.ca.gov.  

Reasonable Accommodation 
Upon request, this publication will be made available in appropriate alternative formats to persons with disabilities, as required 
by the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990. Any person with a disability, who requires a modification or accommodation to 
view the agenda, should direct such a request to Brian Dossey, ADA Coordinator, at 650-997-8300 or 
brian.dossey@colma.ca.gov. Please allow two business days for your request to be processed. 

mailto:ccorley@colma.ca.gov
mailto:brian.dossey@colma.ca.gov


1. In Closed Session Pursuant to Government Code Section 54957.6 – Conference
with Labor Negotiators

Agency Negotiators: Sean Rabé, City Manager 
Austris Rungis, IEDA 

Employee Organizations: Colma Peace Officers Association 
Colma Communications/Records Association 

Unrepresented Employees: All
Chief of Police 

There is no staff report for this item. 

Item #1



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



Page 1 of 4 

MINUTES 
SPECIAL MEETING 

City Council of the Town of Colma 
Town Hall, 1198 El Camino Real 

Colma, CA 94014 
Tuesday, December 13, 2016 

6:30 p.m. 

CALL TO ORDER 

Mayor Colvin called the Special Meeting of the City Council to order at 6:37 p.m. 

Council Present – Mayor Diana Colvin, Vice Mayor Helen Fisicaro, Council Members Raquel “Rae” 
Gonzalez, Joseph Silva and Joanne F. del Rosario were all present. 

INTRODUCTIONS 

Mayor Colvin welcomed the audience and acknowledged local dignitaries and elected officials in 
attendance:  

Dennis Fisicaro, Former Mayor 
Mary Brodzin, Former Council Member 
Adrienne Tissier, San Mateo County Supervisor  
Frances Liston, Former City Manager 
Maureen O’Connor, President of the Colma Historical Association 
Richard Rochetta, Board Secretary of the Colma Historical Association 
Pat Hatfield, President Emerita of the Colma Historical Association 
Dorothy Hillman, Treasurer Emerita of the Colma Historical Association 

Mayor Colvin introduced the following Town of Colma Staff members: 
Sean Rabé, City Manager 
Kirk Stratton, Police Chief  
Brian Dossey, Administrative Services Director 
Brad Donohue, Director of Planning and Public Works 
Michael Laughlin, City Planner 
Caitlin Corley, City Clerk 

FAREWELL RECOGNITION FOR RETIRING COUNCIL MEMBER JOSEPH SILVA 

Mayor Colvin and Council presented Council Member Silva with a proclamation, a gavel engraved 
with his 20 year term of service, a personalized Town of Colma cycling jersey and a donation made 
in his name to the AIDS/LifeCycle Ride to End Aids. 

Assemblymember Phil Ting, Supervisor Adrienne Tissier, Mayor Pradeep Gupta of South San 
Francisco and Maureen O’Connor, President of the Colma Historical Association also made 
presentations.  

Council Member Silva gave his thank you and farewell remarks. 

Item #2



 

Page 2 of 4 

ADOPTION OF THE RESOLUTION DECLARING RESULTS OF NOVEMBER 8, 2016 ELECTION 

Mayor Colvin stated, “Because I am one of the persons who ran for re-election to the Council, I 
have asked the Vice Mayor to handle this portion of the agenda,” and turned the meeting over to 
Vice Mayor Fisicaro. 

Vice Mayor Fisicaro called on City Clerk Caitlin Corley to read the certified results of the election.  

Action: Council Member del Rosario moved to Adopt a Resolution Declaring the Results of the 
General Municipal Election Held on November 8, 2016, and Such Other Matters as Provided By 
Law; the motion was seconded by Council Member Silva and carried by the following vote: 

Name Voting Present, Not Voting Absent 
 Aye No Abstain Not Participating   
Diana Colvin, Mayor      
Helen Fisicaro      
Raquel “Rae” Gonzalez      
Joseph Silva       
Joanne F. del Rosario      
 5 0    

 
 
ADMINISTRATION OF OATHS OF OFFICE TO RE-ELECTED COUNCIL MEMBERS 

Vice Mayor Fisicaro asked Kristina Perez, Representative on the San Mateo County LGBTQ 
Commission, to come to the podium and administer the Oath of Office to re-elected Council 
Member Raquel Gonzalez. 

Vice Mayor Fisicaro asked Supervisor Adrienne Tissier to come to the podium and administer the 
Oath of Office to re-elected Council Member Diana Colvin. 

Vice Mayor Fisicaro asked Chief Kirk Stratton to come to the podium and administer the Oath of 
Office to newly elected Council Member John Irish Goodwin.  

Council Member Silva came down from the dais and Council Member Goodwin took his seat. 

 
REMARKS BY OUT-GOING MAYOR 

Mayor Colvin made remarks as the out-going Mayor. The City Council presented her with a gavel, 
proclamation, flowers and a donation to the Colma Historical Association in her honor.  

 
NOMINATION AND APPOINTMENT OF MAYOR 

Mayor Colvin called upon the Council to make nominations for Mayor. Council Member del Rosario 
nominated Helen Fisicaro for Mayor, and the nomination was seconded by Council Member 
Gonzalez. There were no other nominations, and Mayor Colvin closed the nominations for Mayor 
and called for a vote.   

 
Action: Council Member del Rosario moved to select Helen Fisicaro as Mayor, and the motion was 
seconded by Council Member Gonzalez and carried by the following vote: 



 

Page 3 of 4 

 
Name Voting Present, Not Voting Absent 
 Aye No Abstain Not Participating   
Diana Colvin, Mayor      
Helen Fisicaro      
Raquel “Rae” Gonzalez      
Joanne F. del Rosario      
John Irish Goodwin      
 5 0    

 
ADMINISTRATION OF THE OATH OF OFFICE TO NEW MAYOR  

Out-going Mayor Colvin called Supervisor Adrienne Tissier to the podium to administer the Oath of 
Office to the new Mayor.  After receiving the Oath of Office, Mayor Fisicaro introduced her guests 
and gave her remarks as the in-coming Mayor. 

 
NOMINATION AND APPOINTMENT OF VICE MAYOR 

Mayor Fisicaro called upon the Council to make nominations for Vice Mayor. Council Member del 
Rosario nominated Raquel Gonzalez for Vice Mayor, and the nomination was seconded by Council 
Member Colvin. There were no other nominations, and Mayor Fisicaro closed the nominations for 
Mayor and called for a vote.   

 
Action: Council Member del Rosario moved to select Helen Fisicaro as Mayor, and the motion was 
seconded by Council Member Colvin and carried by the following vote: 

 
Name Voting Present, Not Voting Absent 
 Aye No Abstain Not Participating   
Helen Fisicaro, Mayor      
Raquel “Rae” Gonzalez      
Joanne F. del Rosario      
John Irish Goodwin      
Diana Colvin      
 5 0    

 
ADMINISTRATION OF THE OATH OF OFFICE TO VICE MAYOR 

Mayor del Rosario called City Manager Sean Rabé, to the podium to administer the Oath of Office 
to the new Vice Mayor.  After receiving the Oath of Office, Vice Mayor Gonzalez introduced her 
guests and gave her remarks as the in-coming Vice Mayor. 

 
PRESENTATIONS   

Maureen O’Connor of the Colma Historical Association presented out-going Mayor Fisicaro with a 
certificate and flowers.   
 
Mayor Fisicaro presented Supervisor Adrienne Tissier with a proclamation in honor of her many 
years of service.   

 



 

Page 4 of 4 

SIGNING OF THE VALUES BASED CODE OF CONDUCT 

Mayor Fisicaro gave each member of the Council a Values Based Code of Conduct and they each 
signed the pledge.  

 
ADJOURNMENT 

Mayor Fisicaro adjourned the Special Meeting at 7:56 p.m., and invited everyone to join the 
Council in the reception that followed.   
 

 
Respectfully submitted,  
 
 
Caitlin Corley 
City Clerk 

 

 
  
 



Page 1 of 6 

MINUTES 
REGULAR MEETING 

City Council of the Town of Colma 
Colma Community Center, 1520 Hillside Boulevard 

Colma, CA 94014 
Wednesday, December 14, 2016 

6:00 p.m. – Closed Session 
7:00 p.m. – Regular Session 

CALL TO ORDER 

Mayor Helen Fisicaro called the Regular Meeting of the City Council to order at 7:12 p.m. 

Council Present – Mayor Helen Fisicaro, Vice Mayor Raquel “Rae” Gonzalez, Council 
Members Joanne F. del Rosario, John Irish Goodwin and Diana Colvin were all present. 

Staff Present – City Manager Sean Rabé, City Attorney Christopher Diaz, Chief of Police Kirk 
Stratton, Administrative Services Director Brian Dossey, Director of Public Works Brad 
Donohue, City Planner Michael Laughlin, Sustainability Programs Manager Kathleen 
Gallagher, Human Resources Manager Lori Burns and City Clerk Caitlin Corley were in 
attendance.  

REPORT FROM CLOSED SESSION 

The Mayor stated, “No action was taken at tonight’s closed session.” 

ADOPTION OF THE AGENDA 

Mayor Fisicaro asked that item #6 be pulled from the Consent Calendar and be discussed 
separately. The Mayor asked for a motion to adopt the agenda with the requested changes. 

Action:  Council Member del Rosario moved to adopt the agenda with the requested 
changes; the motion was seconded by Council Member Colvin and carried by the following 
vote: 

Name Voting Present, Not Voting Absent 
Aye No Abstain Not Participating 

Helen Fisicaro, Mayor  
Raquel Gonzalez  
Joanne F. del Rosario  
John Irish Goodwin  
Diana Colvin  

5 0 

PRESENTATION 

 Administrative Services Director Brian Dossey presented new Facility Attendant David
Casilao and new Recreation Leaders Gabriel Gonzalez and Dinora Navarro.

PUBLIC COMMENTS 

Mayor Fisicaro opened the public comment period at 7:18 p.m. Millbrae Council Member 
Wayne Lee presented a commendation to Retired Council Member Joseph Silva. The Mayor 
closed the public comment period at 7:21 p.m. 

Item #3



 

Page 2 of 6 
 

CONSENT CALENDAR 
1.  

2. Motion to Accept the Minutes from the November 11, 2016 Regular Meeting. 

3. Motion to Approve Report of Checks Paid for November 2016. 

4. Motion to Adopt an Ordinance Adopting an Amended Zoning Map and Approving a Planned 
Development Zone for 1670-1692 Mission Road (Rezoning Property from C/DR to PD/DR) 
(Second Reading). 

5. Motion to Adopt an Ordinance Amending Colma Municipal Code Sections 5.01.080 and 
5.03.350 and Adding Section 5.03.355, to Regulate the Personal, Medical, and Commercial 
Use of Marijuana. (Second Reading). 

6. [Pulled from Consent Calendar] 

7. Motion to Adopt a Resolution Approving the Final Map for the Colma Estates Subdivision 
Creating Nine Single Family Residential Lots at 442-468 B Street and Authorizing the City 
Manager to Execute the Subdivision Improvement Agreement. 

City Attorney Christopher Diaz announcement that the property that is the subject of item 
#7 is less than 500 feet from Mayor Fisicaro and Council Member Colvin’s real property 
interests. Previously when this property has been subject of Council consideration, there had 
been three members of Council with real property conflicts of interest. Mayor Fisicaro had 
been brought back in to establish a quorum under the limited rule of necessity at a Council 
meeting held on June 22, 2016, and again at a Council meeting on November 9, 2016. With 
newly elected Council Member John Goodwin, we now have a quorum without any conflict 
of interest on the property, and Mayor Fisicaro will join Council Member Colvin in recusing 
herself from item #7. 

Action: Vice Mayor Gonzalez moved to approve the Consent Calendar items #2 through 5 
and 7, with Mayor Fisicaro and Council Member Colvin recusing themselves from item #7; 
the motion was seconded by Council Member del Rosario and carried by the following vote: 

Name Voting Present, Not Voting Absent 
 Aye No Abstain Not Participating   
Helen Fisicaro, Mayor    Item #7 only  
Raquel Gonzalez      
Joanne F. del Rosario      
John Irish Goodwin      
Diana Colvin    Item #7 only  
 5 0    

 
6. Motion to Receive and File the First Quarter (July 2016 – September 2016) Financial Report 

and Direct Staff to Post a Copy on the Town Website. 

City Manager Sean Rabé presented the staff report. Mayor Fisicaro opened the public 
comment period at 7:25 p.m. and seeing no one come forward to speak, she closed the 
public comment period. Council discussion followed.  

Action: Council Member Colvin moved to Receive and File the First Quarter (July 2016 – 
September 2016) Financial Report and Direct Staff to Post a Copy on the Town Website; 
the motion was seconded by Council Member del Rosario and carried by the following vote: 



 

Page 3 of 6 
 

Name Voting Present, Not Voting Absent 
 Aye No Abstain Not Participating   
Helen Fisicaro, Mayor      
Raquel Gonzalez      
Joanne F. del Rosario      
John Irish Goodwin      
Diana Colvin      
 5 0    

PUBLIC HEARING 

8. CLIMATE ACTION PLAN ANNUAL UPDATE 

Sustainability Manager Kathleen Gallagher presented the staff report.  Mayor Fisicaro 
opened the public hearing at 7:37 p.m. and seeing no one come forward to speak, she 
closed the public hearing. Council discussion followed. 

Action: Council Member Colvin moved to Accept the Climate Action Plan (CAP) Progress 
Report; the motion was seconded be Council Member del Rosario and carried by the 
following vote: 

Name Voting Present, Not Voting Absent 
 Aye No Abstain Not Participating   
Helen Fisicaro, Mayor      
Raquel Gonzalez      
Joanne F. del Rosario      
John Irish Goodwin      
Diana Colvin      
 5 0    

The Mayor presented awards to the following people and organizations:  

Special Recognition 
• Kaiser Permanente - Ron Groepper, Bill Bowdle, Randy Wittorp, 

Elizabeth Ferber were present to accept. 
Solar Installation 

• John Saddi, Target  
• Sudhir and Daxa Patel, 429 D Street  
• Ricardo and Marta Vega, 488 D Street 

Electrical Vehicle Charging Stations 
• Kohl’s 

Water and Energy Audits 
• Cypress Lawn Cemetery 
• Holy Cross Cemetery – Monica Williams and John Bermudez were 

present to accept. 
• Woodlawn Cemetery  



 

Page 4 of 6 
 

• Home of Peace/Hills of Eternity/Salem Cemeteries – James Carlson 
was present to accept. 

• Eternal Home Cemetery – Fred Harris and Lisa Matson were present 
to accept. 

9. COUNCIL OF CITIES AND CITY SELECTION 

City Clerk Caitlin Corley presented the staff report.  Mayor Fisicaro opened the public 
hearing at 7:46 p.m. and seeing no one come forward to speak, she closed the public 
hearing. Council discussion followed. 

Action: Vice Mayor Gonzalez made a motion Confirming Designation of the Mayor as the 
Voting Member for the Council of Cities, Designating an Alternate Voting Member, and 
Giving the Voting Member Discretion on Any and All Matters to be Considered; the motion 
was seconded by Council Member Goodwin and carried by the following vote: 

Name Voting Present, Not Voting Absent 
 Aye No Abstain Not Participating   
Helen Fisicaro, Mayor      
Raquel Gonzalez      
Joanne F. del Rosario      
John Irish Goodwin      
Diana Colvin      
 5 0    

 

10. COMMITTEE ASSIGNMENTS 2017  

City Clerk Caitlin Corley presented the staff report.  Mayor Fisicaro opened the public 
comment period at 7:56 p.m. and seeing no one come forward to speak, she closed the 
public comment period. The Mayor led the discussion on committee assignments for Council 
Members. Below is the list of 2017 Committee Assignments that the Council discussed and 
proposed: 
 

Committee Name 2017 
Primary 

2017 
Secondary 

Office of Emergency Services 
(EMERGENCY SERVICES COUNCIL, MEETS QUARTERLY 3RD 
THURSDAYS IN  JANUARY, APRIL, JUNE & SEPTEMBER, , AT 5:30 
PM, AT THE HALL OF JUSTICE IN REDWOOD CITY IN JURY 
ASSEMBLY ROOM) 

Colvin del Rosario 

Colma Creek Flood District   
(MEETS  QUARTERLY, 2ND TUESDAY @ 3PM  IN  MARCH, JUNE, 
SEPTEMBER AND DECEMBER AT CITY HALL, SOUTH SAN 
FRANCISCO) 

Fisicaro  

Peninsula Congestion Relief Alliance  - “The Alliance” 
Board of Directors member  
(6 X A YEAR, THURSDAY MORNINGS)  

Gonzalez Colvin 

C/CAG    
(2ND THURSDAY OF THE MONTH, 7PM) Colvin Goodwin 



 

Page 5 of 6 
 

League of California Cities   
(ANNUAL CONFERENCE, AND WORKSHOPS THROUGHOUT THE 
YEAR) 

All  
 

San Mateo County Council of Cities 
(MONTHLY DINNER AND MEETING) 

Fisicaro is the 
voting 

representative 

All Council 
Members can 

attend 
Mayor/Chamber Walks  
(SCHEDULED BETWEEN THE MAYOR, CITY MANAGER & CHAMBER 
OF COMMERCE, APPROXIMATELY  5+ OUTINGS)  

Fisicaro 
All other 
Council 

Members 

City Representative at Colma-Daly City Chamber of Commerce  
(1-2 MEETINGS A YEAR, AS NEEDED) Fisicaro Gonzalez 

Legislative Committee (C/CAG) 
(ONCE PER MONTH, ON 2ND THURSDAYS AT 5PM)   Colvin  

ABAG Representative  
(GENERAL ASSEMBLY MEETS TWICE PER YEAR APRIL & OCTOBER) del Rosario Gonzalez 

Grand Boulevard Task Force  
(MEETS 3RD WEDNESDAY, 10AM-12 NOON, MARCH, JUNE, 
SEPTEMBER, DECEMBER AT EITHER SAM TRANS IN SAN CARLOS OR 
CITY HALL IN SANTA CLARA)   

Gonzalez Goodwin 

Peninsula Clean Energy Board of Cirectors 
(MEETS 4TH THURSDAY, 6:30PM AT THE COUNTY OFFICE OF 
EDUCATION BUILDING IN REDWOOD CITY) 

Gonzalez Goodwin 
 

 

Action: Council Member Goodwin moved to Approve Committee Assignments for 2017 and 
Granting to the Appointee Discretion in Voting on Matters Brought Before the Committee; 
the motion was seconded by Council Member Gonzalez and carried by the following vote: 

Name Voting Present, Not Voting Absent 
 Aye No Abstain Not Participating   
Helen Fisicaro, Mayor      
Raquel Gonzalez      
Joanne F. del Rosario      
John Irish Goodwin      
Diana Colvin      
 5 0    

PUBLIC HEARING 

11. BARK PARK 

Administrative Services Director Brian Dossey presented the staff report.  Mayor Fisicaro 
opened the public hearing at 8:16 p.m. Citizen Patricia Simpson and residents Maureen 
O’Connor and Maggie Sutton spoke. The Mayor closed the public hearing at 8:19 p.m. 
Council discussion followed. 

Action: Vice Mayor Gonzalez made a motion to Introduce an Ordinance Adding Section 
2.07.065 to the Colma Municipal Code, Relating to Bark Park Regulations, and Waive a 
Further Reading of the Ordinance; the motion was seconded by Council Member Goodwin 
and carried by the following vote: 

  



 

Page 6 of 6 
 

Name Voting Present, Not Voting Absent 
 Aye No Abstain Not Participating   
Helen Fisicaro, Mayor      
Raquel Gonzalez      
Joanne F. del Rosario      
John Irish Goodwin      
Diana Colvin      
 5 0    

COUNCIL CALENDARING 

The Regular City Council Meeting on Wednesday, December 28, 2016 will be cancelled. The 
next Regular City Council Meeting will be on Wednesday, January 11, 2017 at 7:00 p.m. 

REPORTS 

Helen Fisicaro 
 Colma Creek Committee Meeting - 12/13/16 

City Manager Sean Rabé gave a report on the following topics: 

 Frank & Grossman received a landscaping award for their work at the Sterling Park 
Recreation Center.  

 The Colma Police Officers Association will be awarded the Golden Apple Award from the 
Colma Daly City Chamber of Commerce. 

 City Manager Sean Rabé is now serving as the Chair of the San Mateo County City 
Managers Association.  

ADJOURNMENT 

The meeting was adjourned by Mayor Colvin at 9:19 p.m. and closed in memory of Mary 
Nano, longtime community member.  

 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
Caitlin Corley 
City Clerk 



Item #4



































 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



Ordinance No. __ - Amending Municipal Code re Bark Park (Introduced 12/14/16) Page 1 of 4 

ORDINANCE NO.___ 
OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF COLMA 

ORDINANCE ADDING COLMA MUNICIPAL CODE SECTION 2.07.065 REGARDING 
DOG PARK REGULATIONS 

The City Council of the Town of Colma does ordain as follows: 

ARTICLE 1. RECITALS. 

(a) The Colma Municipal Code (“CMC”) Section 8.01.070 currently does not allow a dog to 
be off-leash in public areas of the Town of Colma, including public parks. 

(b) The Town of Colma’s Dog Park, known as the “Bark Park,” is located on the west end of 
D Street off Clark Avenue in Colma. 

(c) The Town finds that authorizing and regulating the parameters of off-leash activities of 
dogs and their responsible persons within the Bark Park is in the best interests of the health, 
safety, and general welfare of the residents of Colma. Further, the Town of Colma believes that 
limiting certain activities and young children from the Bark Park serves the public interest by 
preventing safety accidents and ensuring the public health, safety, and welfare of the 
community. 

ARTICLE 2. INCORPORATION OF RECITALS. 

The City Council hereby finds that all of the foregoing recitals and the staff report 
presented herewith are true and correct and are hereby incorporated and adopted as findings 
of the City Council as if fully set forth herein. 

ARTICLE 3. CMC SECTION 2.07.065 ADDED. 

Section 2.07.065 shall be and hereby is added to the Colma Municipal Code as follows: 

2.07.065 Bark Park Regulations. 

This section shall apply to the Town of Colma’s Dog Park, known as the “Bark Park,” in addition 
to all other regulations of this CMC Chapter 2.07.  For the purposes of this section, the term 
“Responsible Person” shall mean any person age eighteen (18) years or older who owns, has a 
proprietary or possessory interest in, harbors or has the care, charge, control, custody or 
possession of any dog. 

(a) Pursuant to Government Code section 831.7, the Town shall not be held liable for injury 
or death of a person or pet resulting solely from the actions of a dog in a dog park.  Each 
Responsible Person is solely responsible and liable for the actions of their dog. 

Item #5



Ordinance No. __ - Amending Municipal Code re Bark Park (Introduced 12/14/16) Page 2 of 4 

(b) Consuming, possessing or keeping on or about his or her person any alcoholic beverage 
pursuant to Section 2.07.060(12) is hereby prohibited in the Bark Park.   

(c) Smoking, lighting or carrying a lighted pipe, cigar, cigarette, or other smoking device of 
any kind in the Bark Park is prohibited consistent with Section 2.07.060(19).  

(d) The Bark Park is open from sunrise to sunset pursuant to Section 2.07.030.  No dogs or 
persons are permitted in the Bark Park from sunset to sunrise. 

(e) All dogs must be vaccinated for rabies and legally licensed prior to use of the Bark Park 
as required by CMC Chapter 8.01.  Any Responsible Person must be able to produce evidence of 
vaccination and licensing upon request by proper authorities.  

(f) No person shall place or allow to be placed in the Bark Park any dog that has been 
designated as a Dangerous or Vicious Animal pursuant to CMC Chapter 8.01 or any similar 
animal control regulation.   

(g) Dog bites shall be reported immediately to the Colma Police Department or San Mateo 
County Animal Control at 650-997-8321 or 650-340-8200 or as provided in CMC 8.01.260. 

(h) Dogs under the age of four (4) months are not permitted in the Bark Park pursuant to 
section 121690 of the Health and Safety Code. 

(i) Children fifteen (15) years of age and younger must be accompanied and supervised by 
a responsible adult while in the Bark Park. 

(j) No food of any kind is allowed in the Bark Park to ensure the public safety and welfare 
of both dogs and people in the Bark Park as food can lead to dog fights. 

(k) No Responsible Person shall have more than three (3) dogs at once in the Bark Park to 
ensure proper handling of each dog and to ensure the public health, safety and welfare.  

(l) Dogs shall not be kept on a leash inside the Bark Park. The Bark Park is an "off leash" 
area.  Choke chains, prong collars, and head collars (Halti, Gentle Leader, etc.) are 
recommended to be removed before letting a dog loose in the Bark Park.  

(m) Each Responsible Person is responsible for repairing damages to the Bark Park or Bark 
Park facilities caused by their dog(s) (e.g. filling in holes, etc.).  

(n) It shall be unlawful for a Responsible Person in the Bark Park not to immediately pick up 
and properly dispose of the feces of their dog(s).  Proper disposal shall include the placement of 
such feces in a bag or other container and its disposal in a trash receptacle. 

(o) No person shall place or allow to be placed a female dog in heat or pre-heat in the Bark 
Park. 

(p) No person shall place or allow to be placed a sick dog in the Bark Park.  Sickness 
includes any animal disease that is dangerous or transmittable to humans or other animals, 
including, but not limited to, kennel cough, Giardia, and rabies. 



Ordinance No. __ - Amending Municipal Code re Bark Park (Introduced 12/14/16) Page 3 of 4 

(q) Responsible Persons shall, at all times, take all reasonable precautions to prevent their 
dog(s) from biting, attacking or attempting to bite or attack any person or dog. A Responsible 
Person shall immediately remove his or her dog from the Bark Park if it bites, attacks or 
attempts to bite or attack any person or dog. A Responsible Person whose dog is bitten or 
attacked shall immediately remove his or her dog from the Bark Park. 

(r) Any dog which has been repeatedly aggressive or attempted to attack or bite another 
dog or a person, or whose Responsible Person fails on more than two (2) occasions to abide by 
the reasonable rules and regulations applicable to the Bark Park may be barred from further use 
of the Bark Park by notice and order of the City, in its discretion. 

 

ARTICLE 4. SEVERABILITY.  

Each of the provisions of this Ordinance is severable from all other provisions. If any article, 
section, subsection, paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase of this Ordinance is for any reason 
held by a court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, such decision shall not affect the validity 
of the remaining portions of this Ordinance. 

 
ARTICLE 5. NOT A CEQA PROJECT. 

The City Council finds that this Ordinance is not subject to the California Environmental Quality 
Act (CEQA) pursuant to Sections 15060(c)(2) (the activity will not result in a direct or 
reasonably foreseeable indirect physical change in the environment) and 15060(c)(3) (the 
activity is not a project as defined in Section 15378) of the CEQA Guidelines, California Code of 
Regulations, Title 14, Chapter 3, because it has no potential for resulting in physical change to 
the environment, directly or indirectly. 

 
ARTICLE 6. EFFECTIVE DATE.  

This ordinance, or a summary thereof prepared by the City Attorney, shall be posted on the 
three (3) official bulletin boards of the Town of Colma within 15 days of its passage and is to 
take force and effect thirty (30) days after its passage. 

// 

// 

// 

// 

// 

// 



Ordinance No. __ - Amending Municipal Code re Bark Park (Introduced 12/14/16) Page 4 of 4 

Certificate of Adoption 

I certify that the foregoing Ordinance No. __ was duly introduced at a regular meeting of the 
City Council of the Town of Colma held on December 14, 2016 and duly adopted at a regular 
meeting of said City Council held on ______________, 2016 by the following vote: 
 

Name Voting Present, Not Voting Absent 

  Aye No Abstain Not Participating   

Helen Fisicaro, Mayor      

Raquel “Rae” Gonzalez      

Joanne F. del Rosario       

John Irish Goodwin      

Diana Colvin      

Voting Tally      

 
Dated ______________________  ___________________________________ 
      Helen Fisicaro, Mayor 
 
 
      Attest:   ____________________________ 
         Caitlin Corley, City Clerk 
 
 



Staff Report – Recreation Program Quarterly Review, October - December 2016  Page 1 of 2 
December 22, 2016 

STAFF REPORT 

TO:  Mayor and Members of the City Council 

FROM:  Brian Dossey, Administrative Services Director 

VIA:  Sean Rabé, City Manager 

MEETING DATE: January 11, 2017 

SUBJECT: Recreation Quarterly Review, October – December  2016 

RECOMMENDATION 

Staff recommends that the City Council adopt: 

MOTION TO ACCEPT INFORMATIONAL REPORT ON RECREATION DEPARTMENT 
PROGRAMS, ACTIVITIES, EVENTS, AND TRIPS FOR THE FOURTH QUARTER OF 2016. 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

In the fourth quarter of 2016, a total of 1,480 participants attended 52 programs.  This 
represents an increase of 61 participants from the fourth quarter of 2015. Staff attributes the 
increase to greater participation in the senior program Arm Chair Travel, the scheduling of the 
Cirque du Soleil Show for adults and seniors, and the addition of the fall (Thanksgiving week) 
Day Camp program. 

Staff estimates that 38 percent of the population had a current Colma I.D. during the fourth 
quarter of 2016, suggesting that residents participated in multiple programs. 

There were a total of 75 rentals, which is the same amount of rentals from the third quarter of 
2016.   

BACKGROUND 

Participation 

The Recreation Services Department offered programs, activities, events and trips for all age 
groups during the past quarter.  Below is a summary of participation levels by demographic:  

• A total of 104 adults and seniors participated in enrichment programs.  This represents a
decrease of 8 participants from the fourth quarter of 2015.

Item #6



Staff Report – Recreation Program Quarterly Review, October - December 2016  Page 2 of 2 
December 22, 2016 

• A total of 489 adults and seniors participated in trips and events.   This represents an 
increase of 39 participants from the fourth quarter of 2015. 

 
• A total of 386 youth and teens participated in Enrichment Programs.  This represents an 

increase of 22 participants from the fourth quarter of 2015.     
 

• A total of 206 youths and teens participated in events and trips.  This represents a 
decrease of 6 participants from the fourth quarter of 2015.   

 
• A total of 295 youth, adults and seniors participated in Community Programs.  This 

represents an increase of 14 participants from the fourth quarter of 2015.   
 
The attachment contains a detailed breakdown of participation by program. 

Rental Activity 

The Colma Community Center was rented for 53 different events: 
• Resident Rentals (27 social events and one HOA meeting) 
• Resident Non-profit group (one fundraiser) 
• Non-Resident Rentals (one funeral reception and two holiday events) 
• Non-Resident Non-profit Groups (three meetings) 
• In House Reservations (18 meetings/trainings) 

The Sterling Park Recreation Center was rented for 22 different events: 
• Sterling Park Resident Rentals (22 social events) 

 
Sustainability Impact 

Staff coordinates and implements program and activities which are in alignment with the 
Town’s Climate Action Plan and Sustainability Policy.  In November, recreation facilities began 
composting organic material diverting food waste from the general collection of trash.   
 
ATTACHMENTS 
 

A. 2016 Recreation Services Department Quarterly Review – Participation Detail 



Recreation Services Department Quarterly Review 
October - December 2016 

Participation Detail 

Adult/Senior Enrichment Programs 
Program Registered Sessions New or Existing 

Program 
Boot Camp Fitness 6 1 Existing 
Card Making Classes 8 2 NEW 
Cooking Classes 22 2 Existing 
Creekside Villas Activities 25 3 Existing 
First Aid/CPR 4 1 Existing 
Golf 4 3 Existing 
Hatha Yoga 16 2 Existing 
Yoga for Seniors 8 1 NEW 
Zumba 11 1 Existing 

Adult & Senior Trips & Events 
Program Registered Sessions New or Existing 

Program 
Adult Holiday Event 217 1 Existing 
Arm Chair Travel 27 3 Existing 
Breakfast with Santa 31 1 Existing 
Cirque du Soleil - Luzia 51 1 Existing 
Forest Hill Farms 18 1 NEW 
Friday Films 24 3 Existing 
Night at the Exploratorium 16 1 NEW 
Senior Holiday Luncheon (including 
staff) 

37 1 Existing 

Senior Luncheon (Thanksgiving) 28 2 Existing 
The Great Dickens Fair 25 1 Existing 
Winchester Mystery House 15 1 NEW 

Youth & Teen Enrichment Programs 
Program Registered Sessions New or Existing 

Program 
Ballet, Tap & Hip Hop 7 8 Existing 
Cooking 7 2 Existing 
Fall Day Camp Early Morning Care 12 1 NEW 
Fall Day Camp 19 1 NEW  
Fall Day Camp Afternoon Care 11 1 NEW 
Golf 9 3 Existing 
Guitar Workshop 1 1 Existing 
Keyboard 6 3 Existing 
Kids’ Club Afterschool Program 60 4 Existing 
Kumon Math Tutoring 81 3 Existing 
Kumon Reading Tutoring 60 3 Existing 
Parents’ Night Out 16 3 Existing 
Tae Kwon Do 28 3 Existing 

Attachment A



 2 

Tot Gym & Jam Cancelled 3 Existing 
Vibo Youth Ensemble 3 1 Existing 
Violin Workshop 4 2 Existing 
Winter Day Camp Early Morning Care 17 1 Existing 
Winter Day Camp 28 1 Existing 
Winter Day Camp Afternoon Care 17 1 Existing 
 
Youth and Teen Events & Trips 

Program Registered Sessions New or Existing 
Program 

Breakfast with Santa 59 1 Existing 
Halloween Costume Parade 45 1 Existing 
HOWL-O-WEEN Pet Parade Cancelled 1 Existing 
Ice Creak Arts & Crafts – Halloween 
Masks 

7 1 Existing  

Ice Creak Arts & Crafts – Snow Globes 5 1 Existing 
Pumpkin Carving Party 32 1 Existing 
Teen Activity Group (Meetings) 6 1 Existing 
Teen Activity Group (Volunteer 
Projects) 

7 2 NEW 

Teen Center Hours 8 1 Existing 
Teen Fright Night 20 1 Existing 
Teen Holiday Party – Ski Trip 17 1 Existing 
  
Community Programs 

Program Registered Sessions New or Existing 
Program 

Colma Game Night 43 1 Existing 
Halloween House Decorating Contest 38 1 Existing 
Holiday Craft Night 52 1 Existing 
Holiday House Decorating Contest 49 1 Existing 
Project Read Learning Wheels 36 2 Existing 
Project Read Nutrition Program 19 1 Existing 
Project Read Science Club 58 3 Existing 
 
Note: Programs were cancelled due to insufficient participation. 



Staff Report re MOA with San Mateo County Flood Control District  Page 1 of 2 

STAFF REPORT 

TO:  Mayor and Members of the City Council 

FROM:  Brad Donohue, Director of Public Works 

VIA:  Sean Rabé, City Manager 

MEETING DATE: January 11, 2017 

SUBJECT: Memorandum of Agreement with San Mateo County Flood Control District 

RECOMMENDATION 

Staff recommends that the City Council adopt the following resolution: 

RESOLUTION APPROVING MEMORANDUM OF AGREEMENT WITH THE SAN MATEO 
COUNTY FLOOD CONTROL DISTRICT FOR MAINTENANCE OF THE COLMA CREEK 
FLOOD CONTROL CHANNEL 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

The proposed resolution authorizes the Town of Colma (Town) to enter into Memorandum of Agreement 
(MOA) with the County of San Mateo Flood Control District (SMCFCD) for the Town to perform simple 
maintenance activities in the Colma Creek Channel and to be reimbursed for the Town’s cost of those 
services by SMCFCD. Portions of the Colma Creek Channel are maintained and managed by the SMCFCD. 
This Agreement will allow the Town to enter those portions of the creek (areas defined in Exhibit C) and 
perform minor maintenance and abatement issues as they arise within the creek channel.  

FISCAL IMPACT 

For the services provided by the Town or the Town’s contractors within the Colma Creek Channel that is 
maintained and managed by the SMCFCD, the District shall make payments to the Town based on the 
rates and in the manner specified within the MOA.  The Town shall submit an invoice to the SMCFCD 
upon completion of SMCFCD-authorized work. SMCFCD shall make payment within thirty (30) days of 
receipt of invoice.  In no event shall SMCFCD total fiscal obligation under the term of the proposed MOA 
exceed One Hundred Thousand Dollars and 00/100s ($100,000.00). Invoices shall be submitted on a 
monthly basis whenever work is performed under this MOA.  

BACKGROUND 

Several areas of the Colma Creek that are in the public’s view have been defaced with graffiti, been 
exposed to acts of vandalism, and are subject to poor vegetation management. This has become a blight 
to the many residents, business and public that view the creek from their home, place of business or 
when passing by. The Town over a period of time has been receiving these complaints but has been 
unable to enter these areas due to the fact that they were controlled by either the Bay Area Rapid Transit 
District (BART) and/or the SMCFCD.  When the Town approached SMCFCD to abate or correct these 
issues, it was made apparent that they did not have the time or the labor force to commit to taking care 
of these issues or complaints. The Town and the SMCFCD agreed that if we could obtain the needed 

Item #7



Staff Report re MOA with San Mateo County Flood Control District   Page 2 of 2 

approvals from BART, and construct an agreement that would allow the Town to take over the minor 
maintenance and make the needed repairs, SMCFCD would compensate the Town for their efforts. 

Various areas of the Creek and are owned by BART. Those areas are bordered off with fencing and 
access is limited to one or two locations. To legally enter these areas the Town had to apply for and 
obtain a Right of Entry Permit from BART to legally enter the property. The Town has complied with the 
many BART conditions and has since obtained a permit to enter the property.  

The second part of the process is to enter into the MOA that outlines the Town’s role in abating, repairing 
or maintaining areas of the creek that have become a visual blight or hazard to the community. The MOA 
defines the roles of the Town and that of the SMCFCD in regards to scope of work, responsibilities and 
who is responsible for each task and compensation for work performed.  

ANALYSIS 

By entering into this proposed MOA, the Town’s Public Works Department will now be able to correct the 
many maintenance issues that exist within the bordered off areas of the creek channel. The agreement 
only allows the Town to perform minor maintenance, abatement and repair items. They would not be 
responsible for corrective items that require specialized services such as hazardous waste removal or 
clean up, entry into areas that require confined space permits or work that would go beyond the 
everyday activities of our Public Works Maintenance Department. The agreement also allows for 
compensation for labor and materials that are expended to repair or correct the item of concern. 

ALTERNATIVE 

The City Council could choose not to enter into this agreement with The San Mateo County Flood Control 
District and continue to pursue the District to make the needed repairs and correction when they arise. 
This is not recommended, as it is unlikely to change the visual blight and hazards that currently exist in 
the Colma Creek in the near future. 

COUNCIL ADOPTED VALUES 
 
The City Council has taken a responsible approach by contemplating the entering into an agreement 
with the San Mateo County Flood Control District to maintain, repair, and abate acts of vandalism within 
and around the Colma Creek Channel that are under the control of the SMCFCD.  

CONCLUSION 

Staff recommends that City Council adopt a resolution to a approve a Memorandum of  Agreement with 
the San Mateo County Flood Control District for minor maintenance, repairs and abatement of acts of 
vandalism of the Colma Creek Flood Channel.   

 
ATTACHMENTS 

a. Resolution 
b. Draft copy of Memorandum of Agreement 
c. Map of the Colma Creek Channel  

 

 

 

 



Res. 2016-__, MOA with San Mateo County Flood Control District – Colma Creek Page 1 of 2 
25977.00100\29441798.1  

RESOLUTION NO. 2016-__ 
OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF COLMA 

RESOLUTION APPROVING MEMORANDUM OF AGREEMENT WITH THE 
SAN MATEO COUNTY FLOOD CONTROL DISTRICT FOR MAINTENANCE 

OF THE COLMA CREEK FLOOD CONTROL CHANNEL 

The City Council of the Town of Colma does hereby resolve: 

1. Background.

(a) The San Mateo County Flood Control District (“District”) financed, constructed and
maintains the Colma Creek Flood Control Channel. 

(b) A portion of the Colma Creek Flood Control Channel lies within the Town of Colma (the 
“Town”). 

(c) The Town and District have identified a need for a collaborative effort and sharing of 
resources in vegetation management, abatement of graffiti, vandalism, illegal dumping, illegal 
encampments, minor maintenance efforts, and the collection and disposal of trash and debris 
deposited in and around the Colma Creek Flood Control Channel in the Town. 

(d) The Town and District desire to enter into a Memorandum of Agreement to utilize Town 
resources for vegetation management, abatement of graffiti, vandalism, illegal dumping, illegal 
encampments, minor maintenance, and trash prevention and removal activities within and 
adjacent to the Colma Creek Flood Control Channel. 

2. Findings.

(a) The City Council finds that the Town and District are government agencies duly
authorized and existing under the laws of the State of California, and situated within the 
boundaries of the County of San Mateo. 

(b) The City Council further finds that Government Code section 54981 allows the legislative 
body of any local government agency to contract with another agency for performance of 
municipal services or functions. 

3. Order.

(a) The Memorandum of Agreement (MOA) between the Town of Colma and San Mateo
County Flood Control District, a copy of which is on file with the City Clerk, is approved by the 
City Council of the Town of Colma. 

(b) The Mayor is authorized to execute said contract on behalf of the Town of Colma, with 
such technical amendments as may be deemed appropriate by the City Manager and the City 
Attorney. 

Attachment A



Res. 2016-__, MOA with San Mateo County Flood Control District – Colma Creek Page 2 of 2 
25977.00100\29441798.1  

Certification of Adoption 

I certify that the foregoing Resolution No. 2016-## was duly adopted at a regular meeting of 
said City Council held on __________, 2016 by the following vote: 

 

Name Counted toward Quorum Not Counted toward Quorum 

  Aye No Abstain Present, Recused  Absent 

Helen Fisicaro, Mayor      

Raquel Gonzalez        

Joanne del Rosario       

John Irish Goodwin       

Diana Colvin      

Voting Tally      

 
 

Dated ______________________  ___________________________________ 
      Helen Fisicaro, Mayor 
 
 
      Attest:   ____________________________ 
         Caitlin Corley, City Clerk 

 

 

 











































Staff Report – 2017 Adult Holiday Event  Page 1 of 4 
January 3, 2017 

STAFF REPORT

TO:  Mayor and Members of the City Council 

FROM:  Brian Dossey, Director of Recreation Services 

VIA:  Sean Rabé, City Manager 

MEETING DATE: January 11, 2017 

SUBJECT: 2017 Adult Holiday Event 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION 

Staff recommends that the City Council adopt motion directing the City Manager: 

TO PLAN AND COORDINATE AN ADULT HOLIDAY EVENT AT THE SOUTH SAN 
FRANCISCO CONFERENCE CENTER ON DECEMBER 9, 2017; TO SET THE 
PARTICIPATION FEE FOR THE ADULT HOLIDAY PARTY AT $15 FOR ADULTS AND $10 
FOR SENIORS AND DISABLED; AND, TO PLAN AND COORDINATE THE ANNUAL TOWN 
PICNIC FOR SEPTEMBER 9, 2017 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

In December 2016 the Recreation Services Department planned and coordinated the Adult 
Holiday Event for the second time since 2008.  Due to participation and resident feedback, staff 
recommends that the City Council adopt a motion directing the City Manager to host the Adult 
Holiday Event in 2017. 

Staff is recommending the event be held at the South San Francisco Conference Center, and 
has December 9, 2017 on temporary hold pending City Council direction.     

Due to the cost of the Adult Holiday Event and the policies surrounding how the Recreation 
Services Department sets participation fees, staff is recommending the City Council temporarily 
amend the fee structure for the Adult Holiday Party making it more affordable for the residents 
to participate. 

Also, based on participation and resident feedback, staff is recommending the City Council 
direct the City Manager to plan and coordinate the annual Town Picnic.  The picnic has been the 
Town’s signature community event for the past several years, and staff fears the event would 
lose its appeal if it was postponed in lieu of the Adult Holiday Event. 

Item #8



Staff Report – 2017 Adult Holiday Event   Page 2 of 4 
January 3, 2017 

 

FISCAL IMPACT 

Staff estimates a Holiday Event at the South San Francisco Conference Center for adults and 
seniors to cost $29,200.    

Staff estimates the Town Picnic at the Sterling Park Recreation Center to cost $17,000. 

By hosting both events in Fiscal Year 2017-18, staff estimates an increase of approximately 
$5,100 to the Recreation expenditures budget.  Staff is increasing each program in anticipation 
of higher costs from vendors in 2017. 

BACKGROUND 

Due to the recession, the Adult Holiday Event was cancelled from 2009 – 2014.  In 2015 and 
2016, City Council directed the City Manager to host the Adult Holiday Event at the South San 
Francisco Conference Center.   

The South San Francisco Conference Center is an ideal location for the Adult Holiday Event for 
the following reasons: 

• Proximity to Colma 
• Ability to accommodate 250 people 
• Diversity and flexibility of menu options 
• Sufficient parking and transportation accommodations 
• Ability to provide quiet area 
• Willingness to work with budget  

 
Based on the research that was conducted in 2015, and resident feedback, staff recommends 
the South San Francisco Conference Center host the 2017 Adult Holiday Event. 
 
2016 Adult Holiday Party Re-cap 
The 2016 Adult Holiday Event was very successful.  Approximately 217 residents and staff 
participated, and staff received many positive comments.  Participants enjoyed hand passed 
appetizers, buffet dinner, complimentary wine, photo booth, DJ dancing and a quiet lounge 
area with hot chocolate and cookies. The total cost for the Adult Holiday Event was $24,100; 
$1,000 under budget.  The reason for the costs being under budget is due to the event being 
estimated on an attendance of 250 participants.  
 
ANALYSIS 
 
Adult Holiday Party 

South San Francisco Conference Center 

Based on the reasons stated in the background section of this report, its availability and 
willingness to work with the Town, staff is recommending the South San Francisco Conference 
Center as the venue for the 2017 Adult Holiday Event.  Staff met with the Catering Manager at 
the Conference Center, and has Meeting rooms A-E (same rooms as 2015 & 2016) and the 
Baden Room (Lounge) on temporary hold pending City Council direction. 



Staff Report – 2017 Adult Holiday Event   Page 3 of 4 
January 3, 2017 

 

The Conference Center is also prepared to offer the same (or similar) menu for a slightly higher 
fee from 2016; costs are estimated to go up in 2017.   

Staff estimates the cost of the event at the Conference Center to be $29,200 with 250 
participants.  This is an increase of $4,100 from the 2016 Adult Holiday Event.  Based on 250 
participants, the per person charge will be $117.00. 
 

Item Cost 
Marketing Materials (flyers, invites, postage, etc.) $800 
Food & Beverage (appetizers, buffet dinner, desserts, cash bar 
and SSF Conference Center charges) 

$24,500 

Decorations (centerpieces and pop up lighted displays) $800 
Entertainment (DJ) $1,000 
Transportation $2,100 
TOTAL $29,200 
 
Under the Recreation Services Department fee structure, the cost of this program would be $70 
(60 percent of cost) for adults and $35 (30 percent of cost) for seniors and disabled.  This is 
because the event is open to adults and seniors only and is not being held at a Town facility.  
Based on the cost to the resident, staff has concerns over meeting minimum registration 
requirements.   

Staff recommends the City Council temporarily amend the fee structure for the Adult Holiday 
Party making it more affordable for the residents to participate.  There is a provision in the 
Administration Code (section 2.01.085) that allows for temporary guidelines.  Staff recommends 
the participation fee to be $15 for adults and $10 for seniors making it affordable for maximum 
participation. 

Town Picnic 

Over the past several years the Town Picnic has been the Town’s signature community event, 
and at one point there was discussion of alternating the picnic with the Adult Holiday Event; 
however, there was concern over the picnic losing its appeal if it was alternated from year to 
year.  Therefore in 2015 and 2016 staff was able to downsize the picnic, and reduce the cost to 
$15,000 in 2015 and $16,000 in 2016.   

Staff estimates the Town Picnic at the Sterling Park Recreation Center can be coordinated again 
in 2017 at a cost of $17,000.  The increase is to make way for anticipated increased vendor 
costs.   

Council Adopted Values 
 
Per policy, the Recreation Services Department activities are planned and coordinated so all 
programs are offered to the community equitably.  Due to the recent recession, the Adult 
Holiday Event was canceled for several years creating an imbalance to programs offered to the 
community.  By approving the recommendation to host an Adult Holiday Event and Town Picnic 
in 2017, the City Council would be making the responsible decision, once again offering 
programs equitably to all populations.  
 



Staff Report – 2017 Adult Holiday Event   Page 4 of 4 
January 3, 2017 

 

Sustainability Impact 

Staff coordinates and implements program and activities which are in alignment with the 
Town’s Climate Action Plan and Sustainability Policy.  For example, all invitations and flyers are 
printed on recycled paper products, and staff will reuse holiday decorations that were 
purchased in 2015.  Also, when food and beverages are provided, staff uses recyclable products 
to serve the food. 
 
Alternatives 
 

1. Do not host an Adult Holiday Event and instead Host the Annual Town Picnic in 2017. 
 
SUMMARY 

Based on participation and feedback staff is recommending City Council direct the City Manager 
to coordinate an Adult Holiday Event and Town Picnic in 2017, and to firm up the December 9, 
2017 reservation at the South San Francisco Conference Center for the Adult Holiday Event.   

Due to the cost of the Adult Holiday Event and the policies surrounding how the Recreation 
Services Department sets participation fees, staff is recommending the City Council to 
temporarily amend the fee structure for the Adult Holiday Party making it more affordable for 
the residents to participate. 

 
 
 


	01.11.17 Regular Meeting
	1. Closed Session
	2. Minutes - 12.13.16 Special Meeting
	3. Minutes - 12.14.16  Regular Meeting
	4. Report of Checks Paid - December
	5. Second Reading - Bark Park Ordinance
	6. Quarterly Recreation Review - Oct. - Dec. 2016
	A. October - December 2016 Quarterly Review

	7. Memorandum of Agreement with SMC Flood Control District
	A. Resolution
	B. MOA
	C. Map

	8. Adult Holiday Event 2017



